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Independent Auditors’ Report 

To Hunya Foods Co. Ltd.: 

 
Opinions 
We have audited the Parent Company Only Balance Sheet of Hunya Foods Co. Ltd. as of 
December 31, 2024 and 2023, along with the Parent Company Only Statements of 
Comprehensive Income, Statements of Changes in Equity, Statements of Cash Flows, and the 
Notes to the Financial Statements (including the Summary of Significant Accounting Policies) for 
the annual periods from January 1 to December 31, 2024 and 2023. 

We believe that the aforementioned Parent Company’s Financial Statements accurately represent, 
in all material respects, the financial position of Hunya Foods Co. Ltd. as of December 31, 
2024, and December 31, 2023, along with its financial performance and cash flows for the 
annual periods ending December 31, 2024, and December 31, 2023, in accordan ce  with the 
“Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers.” 

 
Basis	for	Opinions 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the "Regulations Governing Auditing and 
Attestation of Financial Statements by Certified Public Accountants" and auditing standards 
generally accepted in the Republic of China. Our report further describes our responsibilities 
under those standards in the "Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Parent Company 
Only Financial Statements" section. We are independent of Hunya Foods Co. Ltd. in 
accordance with the Norm of Professional Ethics for Certified Public Accountants of the 
Republic of China, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 
these requirements. We believe the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

 
Key	Audit	Matters 
Key audit key matters refer to the most material key matters for the audit of Hunya Foods Co. 
Ltd.'s Parent Company Only Financial Statements for the year 2024, based on the accountant's 
professional judgment. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the 
Parent Company Only Financial Statements in their entirety and in forming our opinion 
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 
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Inventory valuation 
 
As of December 31, 2024, Hunya Foods Co. Ltd.’s inventory amounted to NT$ 302,957 
thousand, accounting for 8% of the total parent company's assets, and was material to the 
financial statements. Since the prices of inventory products are influenced by competition 
from industry peers and may decline, and since inventories are assessed based on the number 
of days until expiration, calculating the net realizable value of inventories becomes 
complicated. Therefore, inventory evaluation is one of the critical evaluation items in the 
accountant’s audit on the financial review of Hunya Foods Co. Ltd. Our audit procedures 
include, but are not limited to, those relating to the following: understanding the internal 
control system established by management for inventory valuation management, evaluating the 
net realizable value estimated by management for inventory valuation, including sampling 
the relevant import and export certificates used by management to assess the net realizable 
value of inventory to verify the net realizable value used by management; sampling the 
inventory inbound and outbound records to verify the correctness of inventory aging and 
the reasonableness of the allowance for doubtful losses based on inventory aging; and 
conducting analytical procedures for inventory balances and inventory turnover rates. We also 
consider the appropriateness of the disclosure of inventories in the Parent Company Only 
Financial Statements, as detailed in Note 4.9, Note 5, and Note 6 to the Parent Company Only 
Financial Statements. 

 

Loss allowance for accounts receivable 

As of December 31, 2024, the carrying amounts of accounts receivable and allowance for 
losses for Hunya Foods Co. Ltd. were NT$414,137 thousand and NT$707 thousand, 
respectively, and the net accounts receivable accounted for 10% of total individual assets and 
were material to the financial statements. Since the allowance for losses on accounts 
receivable is measured based on the expected credit losses over the period, the 
measurement process requires appropriate grouping of accounts receivable and judgmental 
analysis of the use of assumptions related to the measurement process, including the 
appropriate aging range, the loss rate for each aging range and the consideration of forward- 
looking information. Therefore, this is one of the critical evaluation items in the accountant’s 
audit of the financial review of Hunya Foods Co. Ltd. Our audit procedures include, but are not 
limited to, those relating to the following: verifying whether customer groups with 
significantly different loss types are appropriately categorized; testing the reserve matrix 
including assessing the reasonableness of the determination of the age range of each group 
and checking the correctness of the original evidence against the underlying information; 
testing the statistical data related to loss ratio calculated by rolling rate; considering the 
reasonableness of the forward-looking information included in the loss ratio assessment; and 
assessing whether such forward-looking information affects the loss ratio. In addition, we 
conduct analytical review procedures to evaluate whether there are any significant 
abnormalities in the two-period comparison of the changes in accounts receivable. The 
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collectability of accounts receivable is assessed by reviewing the collection status after the 
due date for customers with large receivable balances at the end of the period. We also 
considered the appropriateness of the disclosure of accounts receivable in the Parent 
Company Only Financial Statements as described in Note 5, Note 6, and Note 12.4 to the Parent 
Company Only Financial Statements. 

 
Responsibilities	 of	 Management	 and	 Those	 Charged	 with	 Governance	 for	 the	
Parent	 Company	Only	Financial	Statements 
To ensure that the Parent Company Only Financial Statements do not contain material 
misstatements due to fraud or errors, management is responsible for preparing prudent 
Parent Company Only Financial Statements in accordance with the Regulations Governing the 
Preparation of Financial Statements and the International Financial Reporting Standards 
(IFRS), International Accounting Standards (IASB), International Financial Reporting 
Interpretations (IFRIC), and Interpretation Announcements approved and issued by the 
Financial Supervisory Commission (FSC). This includes establishing and maintaining 
necessary internal control procedures related to the Parent Company Only Financial 
Statements. 

In preparing the Parent Company Only Financial Statements, management is responsible for 
assessing Hunya Foods Co. Ltd.’s ability to continue as a going concern, including disclosing 
relevant matters related to the going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless management intends to liquidate Aurora Corporation, cease operations, or 
has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those charged with governance, including the Audit Committee, are responsible for 
overseeing Hunya Foods Co. Ltd.’s financial reporting process. 

 
Auditors’	Responsibilities	 for	 the	Audit	 of	 the	 Parent	 Company	Only	 Financial	
Statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Parent Company Only 
Financial Statements are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error, 
and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level 
of assurance, but it is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally 
accepted auditing standards in the Republic of China will always detect a material 
misstatement when one exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions made by users based on these financial statements. 

As part of an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards in 
the Republic of China, we apply professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit process. Additionally, we: 
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1. Identify and assess the risk of material misstatements due to fraud or error in the Parent 
Company-Only Financial Statements. Design and implement appropriate countermeasures 
for the identified risk, and obtain sufficient and appropriate evidence as the basis for the 
audit opinion. The risk of failing to detect a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
greater than that stemming from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or circumvention of internal control. 

2. Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not to express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the internal controls of Hunya Foods Co. Ltd. 

3. Assess the appropriateness of the accounting policies adopted by the management and the 
reasonableness of their accounting estimates and relevant disclosures. 

4. Evaluate the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of 
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, determine whether there is a 
material uncertainty related to events or conditions that may significantly doubt Hunya 
Foods Co. Ltd.’s ability to operate as a going concern. If we determine that a material 
uncertainty exists, we must highlight this in our auditors’ report concerning the relevant 
disclosures in the Parent Company Only Financial Statements, or, if such disclosures are 
insufficient, modify our opinion. Our conclusions rely on the audit evidence obtained up 
to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions might lead to 
Hunya Foods Co. Ltd. ceasing to operate as a going concern. 

5. Assess the overall expression, structure, and content of the Parent Company Only 
Financial Statements (including relevant notes) and determine if these statements fairly 
represent the pertinent transactions and items. 

6. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the 
entities or business activities within Hunya Foods Co. Ltd. to express an opinion on the 
Parent Company Only Financial Statements. We are responsible for directing, supervising, 
and performing the audit and for expressing an opinion on the Group’s audits. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance a statement indicating our compliance 
with relevant ethical requirements concerning independence. Additionally, we communicate 
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably relate to our independence, as well as 
any applicable safeguards. 
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine the key 
audit matters of Hunya Foods Co. Ltd.’s Parent Company Only Financial Statements for the 
year ended December 31, 2024. We describe these issues in our auditors’ report unless law or 
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or, in extremely rare circumstances, 
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse 
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest 
benefits of such communication. 

 

 

 
Ernst & Young, Taiwan 
Financial Report of TWSE Listed Company as Authorized by 
the Competent Authority 
Auditing and Attestation No.:  No. FSC (6) No. 0930133943 

No. FSC (6) No. 0970038990 
 

CPA: Rung-Huang Shiu  
Jian-Tze Huang   

February 25, 2025 
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Hunya Foods Co. Ltd. Notes to Parent Company Only Financial Statements (Continued) 

(Amounts in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, unless otherwise specified) 

 

The abovementioned newly established, revised or interpreted standards and 
interpretations issued by IASB and approved by the Financial Supervisory 
Commission are applicable to fiscal years beginning after January 1, 2025 have no 
material impact on the Company. 

3. As of the date of adoption of the financial statements, standards or interpretations 

issued, revised or amended, by International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) 

which are endorsed by FSC, but not yet adopted by the Company as at the end of the 

reporting period are listed below: 
 

Item New/Revised/Amended Standards and Interpretations Effective Date 
Issued by IASB 

1 Amendments to IFRS10 “Consolidated Financial Statements” 
and IAS 28 “Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures” 
- "Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and 
its Associate or Joint Venture" 

To be determined 
by IASB 

2 IFRS17 "Insurance Contracts" January 1, 2023 
3 IFRS 18: Enhancing Financial Statement Clarity January 1, 2027 
4 Disclosure Initiative- — Subsidiaries without Public 

Accountability: Disclosure (IFRS 19) 
January 1, 2027 

5 Amendments to the Classification and Measurement of 
Financial Instruments (Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7) 

January 1, 2026 

6 IFRS Accounting Standards Annual Improvements—Volume 
11 

January 1, 2026 

7 Contracts Referencing Nature-Dependent Electricity 
(Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7) 

January 1, 2026 

 
(1) Amendments to IFRS10 “Consolidated Financial Statements” and IAS 28 “Investments 

in Associates and Joint Ventures” - "Sale or Contribution of Assets between an 
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture" 
 
The amendments address the inconsistency between the requirements in IFRS 
10 “Consolidated Financial Statements” and IAS 28 “Investments in Associates 
and Joint Ventures”, in dealing with the loss of control of a subsidiary that is 
contributed to an associate or a joint venture. IAS 28 restricts gains and losses 
arising from contributions of non-monetary assets to an associate or a joint 
venture to the extent of the interest attributable to the other equity holders in the 
associate or joint venture. IFRS 10 requires full profit or loss recognition on the 
loss of control of the subsidiary. IAS 28 was amended so that the gain or loss 
resulting from the sale or contribution of assets that constitute a business as 
defined in IFRS 3 between an investor and its associate or joint venture is 
recognized in full. 
 
IFRS 10 was also amended so that the gain or loss resulting from the sale or 
contribution of a subsidiary that does not constitute a business as defined in IFRS 
3 between an investor and its associate or joint venture is recognized only to the 
extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in the associate or joint venture. 
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Hunya Foods Co. Ltd. Notes to Parent Company Only Financial Statements (Continued) 

(Amounts in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, unless otherwise specified) 

 

required to provide more transparent information on their operating 
expenses to assist investors in finding and understanding information used 
by them. 

 

(4) Disclosure Initiative-Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosure (IFRS 
19) 
Simplify the disclosure of subsidiaries with no public accountability, allowing 
those that meet the definition to independently choose how to apply this 
standard. 
 

(5) Amendments to the Classification and Measurement of Financial Instruments 
(Amendments to IFRS 9 and IFRS 7) 
These amendments include:  
(a) Clarify the derecognition of financial liabilities on the closing date 

and specify the accounting treatment for financial liabilities settled 
through e-payment before the closing date. 

(b) Clarify how to assess the characteristics of cash flows of financial 
assets connected to Environment, Social, and Governance (ESG) 
factors or similar contingent characteristics. 

(c) Clarify the treatment of non-recourse assets and contract-linked 
instruments.  

(d) For financial assets or liabilities tied to contingent characteristics 
(including links to ESG) as well as equity instruments classified and 
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, 
additional disclosures are mandated in IFRS 7. 

 
(6) IFRS Accounting Standards Annual Improvements-Volume 11 

(a) Amendments to IFRS 1 
(b) Amendments to IFRS 7 
(c) Amendments to Application Guidance for IFRS 7 
(d) Amendments to IFRS 9 
(e) Amendments to IFRS 10 
(f) Amendments to IAS 7 

 
(7) Contracts Referencing Nature-Dependent Electricity (Amendments to IFRS 9 

and IFRS 7) 

These amendments include:  

(a) Clarify the applicable provisions on “Own-use”.  
(b) Allow the application of hedge accounting when contracts are used as 

hedging instruments.  
Increase provisions disclosed in the notes to help investors understand the 
impact of these contracts on their corporate financial performance and cash 
flows.  
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Hunya Foods Co. Ltd. Notes to Parent Company Only Financial Statements (Continued) 

(Amounts in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, unless otherwise specified) 

 

The actual dates for the application of the aforementioned standards or interpretations 
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board, but not yet recognized by 
the Financial Supervisory Commission (FSC), must comply with FSC regulations. 
Excluding the potential impact of the newly issued or amended standards or 
interpretations identified in (3), which are currently being evaluated by the 
Company and whose impact cannot be reasonably estimated at this time, all other 
newly released or amended standards or interpretations do not materially affect the 
Company.  

 
IV. Summary Statement of Principal Accounting Policies 

 
1. Statement of Compliance 

 
The parent company only financial statements of the Company for the years ended 
December 31, 2024 and 2023 were prepared in accordance with the Regulations 
Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers. 
 

2. Basis of Preparation 
 
The Parent Company Only Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance 
with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities 
Issuers. Pursuant to Article 21 of the Regulations Governing the Preparation of 
Financial Reports by Securities Issuers, the current gain or loss and other comprehensive 
income in the Parent Company Only Financial Statements is equal to the current gain 
or loss and other comprehensive income as attributable to owners of parent company 
in the Consolidated Financial Statements. Furthermore, the owner's equity in the 
Parent Company Only Financial Statements is equal to the equity attributable to 
owners of the parent company in the Consolidated Financial Statements. Therefore, 
investments in subsidiaries are expressed using "investments accounted for using 
equity method" in the Parent Company Only Financial Statements, and necessary 
valuation adjustments will be made. 
 
The parent company only financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost 
basis, except for financial instruments that have been measured at fair value. The 
parent company only financial statements are expressed in thousands of New Taiwan 
Dollars (“NT$”) unless otherwise stated. 
 

3. Foreign currency transactions 
 
The Company’s parent company only financial statements are presented in NT$, 
which is also the Company’s functional currency. Transactions in foreign the 
currencies are recorded by their respective functional currency rates at the date of the 
transaction. At the end of every reporting period, items denoted in foreign currencies 
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Hunya Foods Co. Ltd. Notes to Parent Company Only Financial Statements (Continued) 

(Amounts in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, unless otherwise specified) 

 

will be translated at the closing exchange rate of the day. Non-monetary foreign 
currency items measured at fair value will be translated using the exchange rate on 
the date when the fair value is measured. Non- monetary foreign currency items 
measured at historical cost are translated at the exchange rate of the date of the 
transaction. 
 
All exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating 
monetary items are taken to profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for 
the following: 
 
(1). Exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings for an acquisition of 

a qualifying asset to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest 
costs are included in the borrowing costs that are eligible for capitalization. 

(2). Foreign currency items within the scope of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments are 
accounted for based on the accounting policy for financial instruments. 

(3). Exchange differences arising on a monetary item that forms part of a reporting 
entity’s net investment in a foreign operation are recognized initially in other 
comprehensive income and reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal 
of the net investment. 

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognized in other comprehensive 
income, any exchange component of that gain or loss is recognized in other 
comprehensive income. When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognized in 
profit or loss, any exchange component of that gain or loss is recognized in profit or 
loss. 

 
4. Translation of financial statements in foreign currency 

 
The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into New Taiwan Dollars 
at the closing rate of exchange prevailing at the reporting date and their income and 
expenses are translated at an average rate for the period. The exchange differences 
arising from the translation are recognized in other comprehensive income. On the 
disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of the exchange differences 
relating to that foreign operation, recognized in other comprehensive income and 
accumulated in the separate component of equity, is reclassified from equity to profit 
or loss when the gain or loss on disposal is recognized. On the partial disposal of 
foreign operations that result in a loss of control, loss of significant influence or joint 
control but retaining partial equity is considered a disposal. 
 
On the partial disposal of a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation that does not 
result in a loss of control, the proportionate share of the cumulative amount of the 
exchange differences recognized in other comprehensive income is re-attributed to 
the non-controlling interests in that foreign operation. In partial disposal of an 
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Hunya Foods Co. Ltd. Notes to Parent Company Only Financial Statements (Continued) 

(Amounts in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, unless otherwise specified) 

 

associate or joint arrangement that includes a foreign operation that does not result 
in a loss of significant influence or joint control, only the proportionate share of the 
cumulative amount of the exchange differences recognized in other comprehensive 
income is reclassified to profit or loss. 
 

5. Classification of Current and Non-current Assets and Liabilities 
 
An asset is classified as current when one of the following criteria is met; all other 
assets are classified as non-current assets: 
 
(1). It is expected to be realized, or intended to be sold or consumed in the normal 

operating cycle. 

(2). It is held primarily for the purpose of trading. 

(3). It is expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period. 

(4). The asset is cash or a cash equivalent unless the asset is restricted from being 
exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the 
reporting period. 

 
A liability is classified as current when one of the following criteria is met; all other 
liabilities are classified as non-current liabilities: 
 
(1). It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle. 

(2). It is held primarily for the purpose of trading. 

(3). It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period. 

(4). There is no right to postpone the repayment of this liability for at least twelve 
months after the reporting period upon the end date of the reporting period. 

6. Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
Cash and cash equivalents are cash on hand, demand deposit, and short-term and 
highly liquid investments that can be immediately converted to fixed amount of cash 
with very small risks of valuation change. 
 

7. Financial Instruments 
 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a 
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 
 
Financial assets and financial liabilities within the scope of IFRS 9 Financial 
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement are recognized initially at fair value and 
the transaction costs directly attributable to the financial assets and financial 
liabilities (except for financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss) are derived by addition or subtraction from the fair value of assets and 
financial liabilities. 
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Hunya Foods Co. Ltd. Notes to Parent Company Only Financial Statements (Continued) 

(Amounts in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, unless otherwise specified) 

 

 
(1) Recognition and valuation of financial assets 

 
The accounting treatment for recognition and derecognition of all customary 
trading of financial assets of the Company is made on the settlement date. 
 
The Company classifies financial assets as either financial assets subsequently 
measured at amortized costs, measured at fair value through other comprehensive 
income (loss), or measured at fair value through profit or loss: 
 
A. Business model used in managing the financial assets 
B. Characteristics of the contractual cash flows from the financial asset 
 
Financial assets measured at amortized cost 
 
A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if both of the following conditions 
are met and presented as note receivables, trade receivables, financial assets 
measured at amortized cost and other receivables etc., on balance sheet as at the 
reporting date: 
 
A. Business model used in managing the financial assets: Financial asset is held 

to receive contractual cash flows 
B. Characteristics of the contractual cash flows from the financial asset: Cash 

flow is the interest paid solely on the principal and the outstanding principal 
 
Such financial assets (excluding hedging relationships) will be measured at 
subsequent amortized cost 【amount measured at the time of initial recognition, 
less the principal repaid, and add or subtract the accumulated amortized 
difference (using effective interest method) between the original amount and the 
amount due, and by adjusting allowances for loss】. When derecognizing, through 
amortization procedure, or recognizing impairment gain or loss, the gain or loss 
will be recognized as profit or loss. 
 
Interest calculated through effective interest method (multiplying effective 
interest with the total book value of the financial asset) or the following 
conditions will be recognized in profit or loss: 
 
A. If it is a purchased or originated credit-impaired financial asset, the credit 

adjusted effective interest rate is multiplied by the cost of amortized financial 
assets 

B. If it is not, in case of subsequent credit impairment, the effective interest rate will 
be multiplied by the cost of the financial instrument after amortization 

 
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 
 
Financial assets that meet both of the following criteria will be measured at fair 
value through other comprehensive income, and stated on the Balance Sheet as 
financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income: 
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Hunya Foods Co. Ltd. Notes to Parent Company Only Financial Statements (Continued) 

(Amounts in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, unless otherwise specified) 

 

A. Business model used in managing the financial assets: Financial asset is held 
to receive contractual cash flows and for sale of financial asset 

B. Characteristics of the contractual cash flows from the financial asset: Cash 
flow is the interest paid solely on the principal and the outstanding principal 

 
Recognition of gain or loss related to such financial assets will be explained as 
follows: 
 
A. Prior to derecognition or reclassification, except for impairment interest or 

loss, exchange gain or loss will be recognized in the profit or loss, and its 
gain or loss will be recognized in other comprehensive income 

B. During derecognition, accumulated gain or loss recognized in other 
comprehensive income will be reclassified from equity to profit or loss as 
adjustments for reclassification 

C. Interest calculated through effective interest method (multiplying effective 
interest with the total book value of the financial asset) or the following 
conditions will be recognized in profit or loss: 
(a) If it is a purchased or originated credit-impaired financial asset, the 

credit-adjusted effective interest rate is multiplied by the cost of amortized 
financial assets 

(b) If it is not, in case of subsequent credit impairment, the effective interest 
rate will be multiplied by the cost of the financial instrument after 
amortization 

In addition, for equity instruments applicable to IFRS 9 and are not held as 
available-for-sale or applicable as a contingent consideration by the acquirer in 
business consolidation in IFRS 3, during initial recognition, the Company will 
choose (this is not reversible) to state its subsequent fair value changes in the 
other comprehensive income (loss). Amounts stated in other comprehensive 
income cannot be converted to income or loss (during disposal of such equity 
instrument, the accumulated amount stated in other equity item will be directly 
transferred to retained earnings), and will be stated in the Balance Sheet as 
financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income 
(loss). Investment dividends will be recognized in profit or loss, unless such 
dividends clearly represent a portion of the investment cost. 
 

(2) Impairments of Financial Assets 
 
For the debt instrument investment measured at fair value through other 
comprehensive income (loss) and the financial assets measured at amortized 
cost, the Company recognizes expected credit losses and measures allowances 
for loss. For the debt instrument investment measured at fair value through 
other comprehensive income, allowance for loss is recognized in the other 
comprehensive income (loss), and the book value of the investment will not be 
reduced. 
 
The Company measures expected credit loss by reflecting the following methods: 
 
A. Unbiased and probability-weighted amount determined by evaluating each 

possible outcome 
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Hunya Foods Co. Ltd. Notes to Parent Company Only Financial Statements (Continued) 

(Amounts in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, unless otherwise specified) 

 

B. The time value of money 
C. Reasonable and corroborative information related to past events, current 

conditions, and future economic forecasts (can be obtained at no excessive 
cost or input on the Balance Sheet date) 

 
Method for valuating allowance for loss is as follows: 
 
A. Measure the expected credit loss over the next 12 months: Including 

financial assets without significant increase in credit risk after initial 
recognition, or those ruled to have low credit risk on the Balance Sheet date. 
In addition, this also includes those with allowance loss measured by the 
expected credit loss during the previous reporting period, but no longer 
meets the condition in which the credit risk has significant increased since 
the original recognition on the Balance Sheet date. 

B. Measurement of the amount of lifetime expected credit losses: Including 
financial assets with significant increase in credit risk after initial 
recognition or purchased or originated credit-impaired financial asset with 
credit impairment. 

C. For accounts receivable or contractual assets arising from transactions 
within the scope of IFRS 15, the Company adopts lifetime expected credit 
loss to measure allowance for loss. 

D. For rental receivables arising from transactions within the scope of IFRS 16, 
the Company adopts lifetime expected credit loss to measure allowance for 
loss. 

 
On each Balance Sheet date, the Company uses comparisons between the 
changes of default risk on the Balance Sheet date and on the date of initial 
recognition to measure whether there has been a significant increase in the 
financial instrument's credit risk after initial recognition. 
 

(3) Derecognition of financial assets 
 
The Company's financial assets will be derecognized when one of the following 
conditions occurs: 
 
A. The contractual right from the cash flow of the financial asset is terminated 
B. When nearly all risk and compensations associated with ownership of a 

financial asset has been transferred. 
C. Nearly all risk and compensations associated with ownership of an asset has 

neither been transferred nor retained, but the control of the asset has been 
transferred. 

 
When a financial asset is derecognized in its entirety, the difference between its 
carrying amount and any cumulative gain or loss that has been received or is 
receivable and recognized in other comprehensive income, will be recognized in 
profit or loss. 
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Hunya Foods Co. Ltd. Notes to Parent Company Only Financial Statements (Continued) 

(Amounts in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, unless otherwise specified) 

 

(4) Financial liabilities and equity instruments 
 
Classification of liability or equity 
 
The Company classifies the liabilities and equities instrument issued as financial 
liability or equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement 
and the definitions of a financial liability, and an equity instrument. 
 
Equity instruments 
 
Equity instruments refer to any contract with residual interest after subtracting 
all liabilities from assets. Equity instruments issued by the Company are 
recognized by the acquisition cost minus direct distribution costs. 
 
Financial liabilities 
 
Financial liabilities within the scope of IFRS 9: upon initial recognition, recognition and 
measurement are either classified as financial liabilities measured at amortized cost. 
 
Financial liabilities at amortized cost 
 
Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost include accounts payables and 
loans, and will continue to be measured through effective interest method after 
initial recognition. When financial liabilities are derecognized and amortized 
using effective interest method, related gain or loss and amortization will be 
recognized in profit or loss. 
 
Calculation of the amortized cost will take discount or premium during acquisition 
and transaction cost into consideration. 
 
Derecognition of financial liabilities 
 
When the obligation of a financial liability is terminated, canceled or no longer 
effective, the financial liability will be derecognized. 
 
When the Company and the creditors exchange debt instruments with significant 
differences, or make major changes to all or part of the existing financial liabilities 
(whether due to financial difficulties or otherwise), treatment will include derecognition 
of the original liabilities and the recognition of new liabilities. During derecognition of 
financial liabilities, the difference between the carrying amount and the total amount 
of the consideration paid or payable, including the transferred non-cash assets or 
liabilities assumed, is recognized in profit or loss. 
 

(5) Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities 
 
Financial assets and financial liabilities can only be offset and presented in net 
terms on the balance sheet only when the recognized amounts currently contain 
exercise of legal rights for offset and are intended to be settled on a net basis or 
can be realized simultaneously and the debt can be settled. 
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Hunya Foods Co. Ltd. Notes to Parent Company Only Financial Statements (Continued) 

(Amounts in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, unless otherwise specified) 

 

8. Fair value measurement 
 
Fair value refers to the price required or transferred to an asset in an orderly transaction 
between market participants on a measurement date. Fair value measurement assumes 
that the transaction for the asset being sold or liability being transferred takes place in one 
of the following markets: 
 
(1) Principal market of the asset or liability, or 
(2) If no principal market exists, the most favorable market for the asset or liability 
 
The Company needs to be able to enter the principal or most favorable market in 
order to carry out the transaction. 
 
Fair value measurement of the asset or liability uses the assumption that market 
participants would adopt while pricing the asset or liability, where the assumption is 
that the market participants would take the most favorable economic conditions into 
consideration. 
 
The fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into consideration the 
market participant's use of the asset for its highest price and best use or by selling the 
asset to another market participant who will use the asset for its highest price and 
best use to generate economic benefits. 
 
The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate and relevant in the 
relevant circumstances to measure fair value and maximize the use of observable 
inputs and to minimize the use of unobservable inputs. 
 

9. Inventory 
 
Inventories are evaluated on a case-by-case basis by the cost and net realizable value. 
 
Cost refers to the cost of bringing inventory to a state of sale or availability for 
production and location: 
 
Raw materials － The First in First Out (FIFO) approach is used for the 

actual purchase cost. 
Finished goods and 
work in progress 

－ Including direct raw materials, labor and fixed manufacturing 
costs apportioned at normal production capacity, but 
excluding borrowing costs. 

 
Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, 
less estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. 
 
Rendering of services is accounted in accordance with IFRS 15 and not within the 
scope of inventories. 
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value less costs to sell and its value in use and is determined for an individual asset, 

unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those 

from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU 

exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down 

to its recoverable amount. 

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to 

whether there is any indication that previously recognized impairment losses may no 

longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates 

the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is 

reversed only if there has been an increase in the estimated service potential of an 

asset which in turn increases the recoverable amount. However, the reversal is limited 

so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor 

exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, 

had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. 

An impairment loss of continuing operations or a reversal of such impairment loss is 

recognized in profit or loss. 

 
16. Revenue recognition 

The Company’s revenue arising from contracts with customers mainly includes sale of 

goods. The accounting policies for the Company’s types of revenue are explained as 

follow: 

 

Sale of goods 

The Company sells products and recognizes revenue when the promised product is 

delivered to the customer and the customer obtains control (the customer has the 

ability to lead the use of the product and obtain almost all of the remaining benefits of 

the product) and satisfies performance obligation. The main product of the Company 

is leisure food, and revenue is recognized based on the contracted price. The 

remaining sales transactions are usually accompanied by quantitative discounts 

(based on the total cumulative sales in a given period). Therefore, revenue is based on 

the contracted price, less the estimated amount of volume discounts. The Company 

uses cumulative experience to estimate the variable consideration arising from 

volume discounts using expectations only to the extent that it is highly probable that 

there will be no material reversal in the cumulative amount of revenue recognized 

when the uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is subsequently 

removed. The refund liability is also recognized relative to the expected volume 

discount during the specific period of the agreement. 

31



Hunya Foods Co. Ltd. Notes to Parent Company Only Financial Statements (Continued) 

(Amounts in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, unless otherwise specified) 

 

The Company does not provide any warranty agreement for the goods provided. 

The credit period for the product sales transactions of the Company is 40-90 days. 

Accounts receivable will be recognized when most of the contracts are subject to 

product transfer control and have the right to receive unconditional consideration. 

These receivables are usually short term and do not pose as significant financing 

components. 

The period in which the Company reclassifies the aforementioned contractual 

liabilities to income does not generally exceed one year and does not result in the 

creation of a significant financial component. 

Service Revenue 

The company's service revenue primarily derives from the provision of exhibition 

services, and related income is recognized in the financial reporting period during 

which the service revenue is provided. 

 
17. Borrowing cost 

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or 

production of a qualifying asset form part of the cost of that asset and, therefore, 

should be capitalized. Other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense. Borrowing 

costs are interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. 

 
18. Government grant 

Government grants are recognized where there is reasonable assurance that the grant 

will be received and all attached conditions will be complied with. Where the grant 

relates to an asset, it is recognized as deferred income and released to income in equal 

amounts over the expected useful life of the related asset. When the grant relates to 

an expense item, it is recognized as income over the period necessary to match the 

grant on a systematic basis to the costs that it is intended to compensate. 

Where the Company receives non-monetary grants, the asset and the grant are 

recorded gross at nominal amounts and released to the statement of comprehensive 

income over the expected useful life and pattern of consumption of the benefit of the 

underlying asset by equal annual installments. Where loans or similar assistance are 

provided by governments or related institutions with an interest rate below the 

current applicable market rate, the effect of this favorable interest is regarded as 

additional government grant 
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19. Post-retirement benefits 

All regular employees of the Company and its domestic subsidiaries are entitled to 

pension plans that are managed by an independently administered pension fund 

committee. Fund assets are deposited under the committee’s name in the specific bank 

account and hence, not associated with the Company and its domestic subsidiaries. 

Therefore, fund assets are not included in the Company’s parent company only financial 

statements. Pension benefits for employees of the overseas subsidiaries and the branches 

are provided in accordance with the respective local regulations. 

For the defined contribution plan, the Company and its domestic subsidiaries will make a 

monthly contribution of no less than 6% of the monthly wages of the employees subject 

to the plan. The Company and its domestic subsidiaries recognize expenses for the 

defined contribution plan in the period in which the contribution becomes due. Overseas 

subsidiaries and branches make contribution to the plan based on the requirements of 

local regulations and the contribution is expensed as incurred. 

For retirement pension plans with defined benefit plan, the Company will include the 

amounts after the reporting period on actuarial report through projected unit credit 

method. Revaluation of net defined benefit liabilities (asset) includes any changes in 

return on plan assets and asset ceiling and will be reduced by amount of net interest 

included in the net defined benefit liability (asset) and actuarial profit or loss. When 

revaluation of net defined benefit liability (asset) occurs, it will be recognized under 

other comprehensive income (loss) and immediately recognized in retained earnings. 

Past service cost is the change from the present value of the defined benefit plan due 

to plan revision or reduction, and will be recognized as expense on the earlier of the 

two dates: 

(1) When the plan is revised or reduced; and 

(2) When the Company recognizes relevant restructuring cost or termination 

benefits. 

Net interest of net defined benefit liability (asset) is net defined benefit liability 

(asset) multiplied by the discount rate, and both will be decided at the beginning of a 

reporting period. Subsequently, any changes that occur to the net defined benefit 

liability (asset) from allocations and benefit expense during the period will be 

considered. 
 

20. Income Tax 

Income tax expense (benefit) is the aggregate amount included in the determination 

of profit or loss for the period in respect of current tax and deferred tax. 
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Current income tax 

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are 

measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation 

authorities, using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively 

enacted by the end of reporting period. Current income tax relating to items 

recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity is recognized in other 

comprehensive income or equity and not in profit or loss. 

The income tax for undistributed earnings is recognized as income tax expense when 

the distribution proposal is approved by the Shareholders’s meeting.   

Recognized as an income tax expense on the date of the shareholders' meeting 

resolution to distribute profits. 

Deferred income tax 

Deferred tax is calculated based on the temporary difference between the taxable 

basis of assets and liabilities and the carrying amounts on the Balance Sheet at the 

end of the reporting period. 

All taxable temporary difference shall be recognized as deferred tax liabilities except 

for the following: 

(1) Initial recognition of goodwill; or the initial recognition of an asset or liability 

not arising from a business combination transaction and does not affect 

accounting profits or taxable income (loss) at the time of the transaction; 

(2) Arising from investment in subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures, whose 

point of reversal can be controlled and there may not be any taxable temporary 

difference that shall be reversed in the foreseeable future. 

Deferred income tax assets that are deductible from temporary differences, unused 

tax losses and unused income tax deductions are recognized in the context of 

probable future taxable income except for the following: 

(1) Related to deductible temporary differences arising from the original recognition of 

assets or liabilities in transactions not categorized as business combinations, affecting 

neither accounting profits nor taxable income (loss) upon transactions, and not 

generating equivalent taxable and deductible temporary differences upon transactions. 

Related to deductible temporary differences arising from investments in 

subsidiaries, affiliates and joint agreement equity and only recognized within a 

scope in which it is very likely to be reversed in a foreseeable future and there is 

sufficient taxable income to be used by this temporary difference upon reversal. 
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Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rate of the 

expected asset realization or in the period in which the liability is settled. The 

tax rate is based on the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted in the 

legislative or substantive legislation at the end of the reporting period.  

(2) The measurement of deferred income tax assets and liabilities reflects the tax 

consequences arising from the manner in which the asset is expected to be 

recovered or the carrying amount of the liability is settled at the end of the 

reporting period. The deferred income tax that is related to items not recognized 

in profit or loss will also not be recognized in profit or loss. It will be recognized 

in other comprehensive income (loss) or directly recognized in equity based on 

its related transaction. Deferred tax assets shall be reviewed and recognized at 

the end of each reporting period. 
 

For deferred tax assets and liabilities, only the offset between the current tax assets 

and current tax liabilities carries legally enforceable rights. Moreover, deferred 

income tax may be offset when it is subject to the same taxpayer and is related to the 

income tax levied by the same tax authority. 

 

In accordance with the provisions of the “International Tax Reform Pillar Two Model 

Rules– Amendments to IAS 12” on temporary exceptions, it is not allowed to 

recognize the defected income tax assets and liabilities in Pillar Two, nor to disclose 

relevant information. 
 

V. Major Sources of Uncertainty in Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates, and Assumptions 
 

The preparation of the Company’s parent company only financial statements require 

management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 

amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent 

liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. However, uncertainty about these 

assumption and estimate could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment 

to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in future periods. 
 
Estimates and assumptions 
 
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation 
uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material 
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial 
year are discussed below: 
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(1) Fair value of financial instruments 
 

Where the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance 

sheet cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined using valuation 

techniques including the income approach (for example the discounted cash flow 

model) or market approach. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the 

reported fair value of the financial instruments. Please refer to Note 12 for more details. 
 
(2) Post-retirement benefits 
 

The cost of post-employment benefit and the present value of the pension 

obligation under defined benefit pension plans are determined using actuarial 

valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions. These 

include the determination of the discount rate and changes of the future salary 

increases Please refer to Note 6 for details on the assumptions used to measure 

the cost of defined benefit costs and defined benefit obligations. 
 

(3) Revenue recognition – sales returns and allowance 
 

The Company estimates sales returns and allowance based on historical 

experience and other known factors at the time of sale, which reduces the 

operating revenue. In assessing the aforementioned sales returns and allowance, 

revenue is recognized to the extent it is highly probable that a significant reversal 

in the amount of cumulative revenue recognized will not occur. 
 

(4) Income Tax 
 

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations 

and the amount and timing of future taxable income. Given the wide range of 

international business relationships and the long-term nature and complexity of 

existing contractual agreements, differences arising between the actual results 

and the assumptions made, or future changes to such assumptions, could 

necessitate future adjustments to tax income and expense already recorded. The 

Company establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates, for possible 

consequences of audits by the tax authorities of the respective counties in which 

it operates. The amount of such provisions is based on various factors, such as 

experience of previous tax audits and differing interpretations of tax regulations 

by the taxable entity and the responsible tax authority. Such differences of 

interpretation may arise on a wide variety of issues depending on the conditions 
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prevailing in the respective Group company's domicile. 

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all carryforward of unused tax losses and 

unused tax credits and deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is 

probable that taxable profit will be available or there are sufficient taxable 

temporary differences against which the unused tax losses, unused tax credits or 

deductible temporary differences can be utilized. The amount of deferred tax 

assets determined to be recognized is based upon the likely timing and the level 

of future taxable profits and taxable temporary differences together with future 

tax planning strategies. 
 

(5) Trade receivables – estimation of impairment loss 
 

The Company estimates the impairment loss of trade receivables at an amount 

equal to lifetime expected credit losses. The credit loss is the present value of the 

difference between the contractual cash flows that are due under the contract 

(carrying amount) and the cash flows that expects to receive (evaluate forward 

looking information). However, as the impact from the discounting of short-term 

receivables is not material, the credit loss is measured by the undiscounted cash 

flows. Where the actual future cash flows are lower than expected, a material 

impairment loss may arise. Please refer to Note 6 for more details. 
 

(6) Inventories 
 

Estimates of net realizable value of inventories take into consideration that 

inventories may be damaged, become wholly or partially obsolete, or their selling 

prices may decline. The estimates are based on the most reliable evidence 

available at the time the estimates are made. 
 

VI. Explanations of Significant Accounting Items 
 

1. Cash and cash equivalents 

 

 2024.12.31  2023.12.31

Petty cash $580  $480

Bank deposits 36,937  41,206

Bank deposits- Fixed deposits (Note) 9,835  -

Total $47,352  $41,686

 

Note: Refer to deposits with contract periods due within three months that can be 
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2. Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 

 

 2024.12.31  2023.12.31 

Investments in equity instruments at fair value through 

other comprehensive income- non- current:   

Listed companies’ stocks $687,670  $708,418

Total $687,670  $708,418

 
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income were not pledged. 
 

Information related to the dividend income obtained by the Company from its investments in 
equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income in 2024 
and 2023 is as follows:  

 2024 2023 

Dividend income from investments that are still held 

as of the balance sheet date and recognized in the

current period $1,221 $-

In consideration of the Company's investment strategy, the Company participated in a 
private placement of 465,117, 426,440 and 380,000 common shares of PharmaEssentia 
Corp. listed over the counter in December 2019, June 2020 and May 2022, respectively, 
which are not freely transferable for three years. 
 
On June 16, 2021, the Company's Board of Directors approved the reinvestment in 
Acepodia, Inc., (Cayman) in the form of a cash capital increase, with participation in 
the cash capital increase of 403,225 preferred shares in November 2021. Acepodia, 
Inc., (Cayman) was listed on the Emerging Stock Market on August 8, 2023. All 
403,225 preferred shares held by the Group in this company were converted to 
1,612,900 ordinary shares. 
 

3. Notes receivable 

 

 2024.12.31  2023.12.31

Notes receivable - from operating activities $-  $2,339

Notes receivable - from non-operating activities 2,593  2,593

Subtotal (Total carrying amount) 2,593  4,932

Less: Loss allowances -  -

Total 2,593  $4,932

Notes receivable of the Company was not pledged. 
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The Company assesses information related to impairment and allowance for impairment 

using regulations from IFRS 9. Please refer to Note 6(17) for details. Please refer to 

Note 12 for information on credit risk. 

 

4. Accounts receivable 

 

 2024.12.31  2023.12.31

Accounts receivable (Total carrying amount) $414,137  $331,560

Less: Loss allowances (707)  (997)

Subtotal 413,430  330,563

Accounts receivable - related parties 5,005  3,763

Total $418,435  $334,326

 
Accounts receivable of the Company were not pledged. 
 

The credit period granted by the Company to customers normally ranges from 30 days to 

90 days. The total carrying amounts were NT$419,142 thousand and NT$335,323 thousand 

on December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023 respectively. Please refer to Note 

6(17) for information related to allowance for impairment loss in 2024 and 2023. 

Please refer to Note 12 for information on credit risk. 

 

5. Inventories 
 2024.12.31  2023.12.31

Commodities $629  $676
Raw materials 105,228  86,967
Materials 31,179  32,767
Work in process 26,085  32,157
Finished goods 139,836  110,208

Total $302,957  $262,775

 

The Company recognized operating costs of NT$1,410,485 thousand and NT$1,239,766 

thousand in 2024 and 2023, respectively, which included NT$10 thousand of gain from 

price recovery of inventory and NT$24 thousand of reduce inventory to market. 

The Company's cost of goods sold related to Inventories includes a gain from price 

recovery of inventory recognized due to an increase in Net Realizable Value (NRV), 

primarily resulting from the write-off of certain devalued inventory. 

The aforementioned inventories were not pledged. 
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6. Investments accounted for using the equity method 
 

 2024.12.31 2023.12.31 

Name of Investee Amount Shareholding Amount  Shareholding

Investments in subsidiaries    
HUNYA INTERNATIONAL 

LIMITED 
$- - $-  100.00% 

Croissant Bakery Ltd. 168,691 100.00% 192,851  100.00% 

Total $168,691 $192,851  

 

ments in subsidiaries are expressed using "investments accounted for using equity 

method" in the Parent Company Only Financial Statements, and necessary valuation 

adjustments will be made. 

 

The Company reported the end of business operations of HUNYA INTERNATIONAL 

LIMITED to the board of directors on August 9, 2023, obtained a certificate of liquidation 

on October 11, 2023, and completed liquidation and cancelation registration. 
 

7. Property, Plant, and Equipment 
 

 2024.12.31  2023.12.31

Property, plant, and equipment for self-use $2,000,328  $1,704,604

 

  

Land  

Housing and 

Construction  Machinery

Computer and 
telecommunic

ation 
equipment

Transportati

on 

equipment  

Leasehold 

improveme

nts 

Other 

Equipment  

Constructi

on in 

Process Total 

Cost:     

2024.1.1  $828,500 $1,368,497 $1,568,745 $24,110 $42,905 $39,309 $191,245 $114,670 $4,177,981

Addition  - 12,131 66,770 1,766 8,367 - 79,329 101,452 269,815

Disposal  - - (70,900) - (4,289) - (15,751) - (90,940)

Other changes  - - - - - - - (113,008) (113,008)

Other (Transfers 

to/from other 

non- current 

assets) 

 

- 91,562 151,493 - 329 - 14,008 (1,370) 273,424

2024.12.31  $828,500 $1,472,190 $1,716,108 $25,876 $47,312 $39,309 $191,245 $101,744 $$4,517,272

      

Depreciation:     

2023.1.1  $-  $$951,323 $1,345,054 $14,781 $34,727 $25,403 $102,089 $- $2,473,377

Depreciation  -  30,861 52,149 4,079 2,322 6,454 38,556 - 134,421

Disposal  -  - (70,872) - (4,231) - (15,751) - (90,854)

Other changes  -  - - - - - - - -

2023.12.31  $-  $951,323 $1,326,331 $18,860 $32,818 $31,857 $124,894 $- $2,516,944
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Cost:     

2023.1.1  $861,933 $1,362,503 $1,509,020 $17,972 $40,639 $29,258 $136,058 $88,467 $4,045,850

Addition  - 15,180 35,133 5,204 1,517 9,085 45,267 43,022 154,408

Disposal  - - (26,197) (143) (1,989) - (4,088) - (32,417)

Other changes  - - - - - - - (16,819) (16,819)

Other (Transfer 

to investment 

property) 

 

(33,433) (13,650) - - - - - - (47,083)

Other (Transfers 

to/from other 

non- current 

assets) 

 

- 4,464 50,789 1,077 2,738 966 14,008 - 74,042

2023.12.31  $828,500 $1,368,497 $1,568,745 $24,110 $42,905 $39,309 $191,245 $114,670 $4,177,981

      

Depreciation:     

2023.1.1  $-  $930,357 $1,311,866 $10,347 $35,081 $18,984 $93,297 $- $2,399,932

Depreciation  -  30,956 57,594 4,458 1,622 6,419 12,879 - 113,928

Disposal  -  - (24,406) (24) (1,976) - (4,087) - (30,493)

Other changes  -  - - - - - - - -

Other (Transfer 

to investment 

property) 

 

-  (9,990) - - - - - - (9,990)

2023.12.31  $-  $951,323 $1,345,054 $14,781 $34,727 $25,403 $102,089 $- $2,473,377

     

Carrying 

amount:     

2024.12.31  $828,500 $490,006 $389,777 $7,016 $14,494 $7,452 $161,339 $101,744 $2,000,328

2023.12.31  $828,500 $417,174 $223,691 $9,329 $8,178 $13,906 $89,156 $114,670 $1,704,604

 

(1) As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Company acquired part of the agricultural 

land in Dazhuang section of Bade City in the name of a third party and entered 

into a real estate trust deed with a carrying value of NT$7,980 thousand. 

(2) Please refer to Note 8 for the pledge of property, plant and equipment 

 

8. Investment property 
 

Investment property is the Company’s owned investment property. The Company enters 

into commercial property leases for its own investment properties with lease terms 

ranging from 1 to 5 years, and has the right of first refusal for part of the lease contracts. 

 
 Land Buildings  Total 

Cost:  
2024.1.1 $167,799 $95,337 $263,136
Addition - - -
Disposal - - -
Other (Reclassifications) - - -
2024.12.31 $167,779 $95,337 $263,136
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2023.1.1 $134,366 $81,687 $216,053
Addition - - -
Disposal - - -
Other (Reclassifications) 33,433 13,650 47,083
2023.12.31 $167,779 $95,337 $263,136

 
Depreciation:  
2024.1.1 $- $76,329 $76,329
Current depreciation - 1,728 1,728
Disposal - - -
Other (Reclassifications) - - -
2024.12.31 $- $78,057 $78,057
2023.1.1 $- $64,593 $64,593
Current depreciation - 1,746 1,746
Disposal - - -
Other (Reclassifications) - 9,990 9,990
2024.12.31 $- $76,329 $76,329

    
Carrying amount:    
2024.12.31 $167,799 $17,280 $185,079
2023.12.31 $167,799 $19,008 $186,807
 
 2024  2023 
Rental income from investment properties $20,156  $18,029

 
Please refer to Note 8 for the pledge of investment property, plant and equipment. 

 

The fair value of investment properties held by the Company cannot be reliably 

determined. After searching the website of the Secretary of the Interior and the website 

of the real estate transaction inquiry service, the fair value of investment properties held 

by the Company as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 was estimated to be approximately 

NT$874,517 thousand to NT$1,177,540 thousand and NT$741,484 thousand to 

NT$1,249,811 thousand, respectively, by referring to the actual transaction information 

of the neighboring areas, and the fair value of investment properties held by the Company 

is highly likely to fall within the aforementioned range. 

 

(1) The nature of the leases is mainly for warehouses and offices, and the main 

contents of the leases are the same as the general leases. 

(2) Rental income from building and warehouse rentals is on a monthly basis.
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9. Intangible assets 

 

  
Computer 
Software 

Cost:  
2024.1.1  $63,111
Addition  5,712
Disposal  -
Other (Transfer from prepayments for equipment)  1,920 
2024.12.31  $70,743 

2023.1.1  $49,843
Addition  8,632
Disposal  -
Other (Transfers to/from other non- current assets)  4,636 
2023.12.31  $63,111 

  
Amortization and impairment:  
2024.1.1  $46,412
Amortization  6,937
Disposal  -
2024.12.31  $53,349 

2023.1.1  $33,635
Amortization  12,777
Disposal  -
2023.12.31  $46,412 

  
Carrying amount:  
2024.12.31  $17,394 

2023.1.1  $16,208 

2023.12.31  $16,699 

 

10. Other non-current assets 

 

 2024.12.31  2023.12.31

Prepayments for equipment $101,446  $216,386

Refundable deposits 4,939  4,476

Other non-current assets－other 18,103  26,012

Total $124,488  $246,874
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11. Short-term loans

Interest Rate Range 

(%) 2024.12.31 2023.12.31

Bank secured loans 1.84% $100,000  $-
Bank credit loans 1.65% -  50,000
Total $100,000  $50,000

The Company had unused short-term borrowing facilities of approximately NT$610 

thousand thousand and NT$860 thousand thousand as of December 31, 2024 and 

December 31, 2023, respectively. 

The secured loan is secured by a mortgage on a portion of the land and buildings, 

please refer to Note 8 for details. 

12. Deferred revenue

Government grant 

2024 2023 

Beginning balance $1,073 $553

Current government grants received 6,899 780

Recognized to profit or loss (7,190) (260)

Ending balance $782 $1,073

2024.12.31 2023.12.31

Deferred revenue related to assets - non-current $782 $1,073

The Company received government grants for the purchase of pollution control 

equipment and electric tractors, information systems, and manufacturing upgrade 

and transformation. There are no outstanding conditions and other contingencies for 

the government grants recognized. 

13. Long-term loans

The details of long-term loans as of December 31, 2024 and 2023 are as follows: 

Lenders 2024.12.31 Repayment period and method 
Secured loans from 
Bank of Taiwan 

$400,000 1.Long-term loans amounted to NT$ 100,000 thousand and 
each were negotiated and determined from September 16, 

2022 to September 16, 2025. The principal should be 
repaid upon maturity, while interest should be paid on a 
monthly basis. The total credit line was NT$ 400,000

thousand. 
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Lenders 2024.12.31 Repayment period and method 
2.Long-term loans amounted to NT$ 300,000 thousand and 

each were negotiated and determined from December 03, 
2024 to December 03, 2027. The principal should be 
repaid upon maturity, while interest should be paid on a 

monthly basis. The credit line was NT$ 400,000 thousand.

Secured loans from 
Chang Hwa 
Commercial Bank 

50,000 
thousand

Loans were negotiated separately from April 6, 2023 to April 
6, 2028, with principal repayment upon maturity and

interest payable monthly. The total credit limit is NT$50,000
thousand. 

Secured loans from 
Taipei Fubon 
Commercial Bank 

190,000 From August 15, 2024 to July 31, 2026, the credit line is 

available for draw-down at any time and is payable at 
any time, with interest payable monthly. The credit line 
is NT$195,000 thousand. 

Secured loans from 
E.SUN Commercial 
Bank 

30,000 From February 02, 2024 to February 02, 2026, the credit 
line is negotiated on a lump-sum basis, with principal 
repayment on maturity and interest payable monthly. 

The credit line is NT$60,000 thousand. 

Secured loans from 
Taiwan Cooperative 
Bank 

104,000 1.Long-term loans amounted to NT$ 45,000 thousand and 
each were negotiated and determined from December 27, 

2024 to December 27, 2027. The principal should be 
repaid upon maturity, while interest should be paid on a 
monthly basis. The total credit line was NT$ 45,000

thousand.  

2.Long-term loans amounted to NT$ 59,000 thousand and 
each were negotiated and determined from December 27, 

2024 to December 27, 2027. The principal should be 
repaid upon maturity, while interest should be paid on a 
monthly basis. The total credit line was NT$ 69,500

thousand. 

Subtotal 774,000
Less: Due within 
one year 

(100,000)

Total $674,000

The interest rate range of the long-term loans as of December 31, 2024 was 1.84% to 
1.995%. 

Lenders 2023.12.31 Repayment period and method 

Secured loans from 
Bank of Taiwan 

$380,000 From December 29, 2022 to December 28, 2025, the credit
line is negotiated on a lump-sum basis, with principal 

repayment on maturity and interest payable monthly. The 
credit line is NT$400,000 thousand. 
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Lenders  2023.12.31 Repayment period and method 

 
Secured loans from 

Chang Hwa 
Commercial Bank 

 72,222 1. Long-term loans amounted to NT$ 22,222 thousand

and were each negotiated and determined from April 
7, 2020 to March 15, 2024. The principal should be 
repaid upon maturity, while interest should be paid on 

a monthly basis. The total credit line was NT$ 150,000
thousand. The total credit line was changed to 
NT$ 88,890 thousand as of November 2022.  

2. Long-term loans amounted to NT$ 50,000 thousand
and each were negotiated and determined from April 
6, 2023 to April 6, 2028. The principal should be repaid 

upon maturity, while interest should be paid on a 
monthly basis. The total credit line was NT$ 50,000
thousand. 

Secured loans from 
Taipei Fubon 
Commercial Bank 

 195,000 From May 26, 2023 to May 24, 2025, the credit line is 
available for draw-down at any time and is payable at 
any time, with interest payable monthly. The credit line 

is NT$195,000 thousand. 
Secured loans from 
E.SUN Commercial 

Bank 

 60,000 From June 12, 2023 to June 12, 2025, the credit line is 
negotiated on a lump-sum basis, with principal repayment 

on maturity and interest payable monthly. The credit line 
is NT$60,000 thousand. 

Subtotal  707,222  

Less: Due within one 
year 

 22,222
 

Total  $685,000  

 
The interest rate range of the long-term loans as of December 31, 2023 was 1.70% to 
1.85%. 
 
The secured loan is secured by a first mortgage on a portion of the land and buildings, 
please refer to Note 8 for details. 
 

14. Post-retirement Benefit Plan 
 
Defined contribution plans 
 
Expenses under the defined contribution plan for the years ended December 31, 2024 
and 2023 were NT$17,445 thousand and NT$15,329 thousand, respectively. 
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Adjustments of the present value of the defined benefit obligations and fair value of 
the plan assets: 
 2024.12.31 2023.12.31  2023.1.1 
obligation $57,065 $66,921 $71,413
Fair value of plan assets (50,097) (52,649) (61,240)
Other non-current liabilities net 

defined benefit liabilities recorded $6,968 $14,272 $10,173

 
Adjustments to the net defined benefit liabilities (assets): 
 

 

Present value 
of defined 

Benefit 
obligation 

Fair value of 
plan assets  

Net defined 
benefit 

liabilities 
(assets) 

2023.1.1 $71,413 $(61,240) $10,173
Service costs for the current period 162 - 162
Interest expenses (income) 928 (796) 132

Subtotal 72,503 (62,036) 10,467
Remeasurement of defined benefit 
liabilities/assets:  

Actuarial gains or losses from 
demographic assumptions - - -
Actuarial gains or losses from 
financial assumptions 

460
- 

460

Experience based adjustments 4,369 - 4,369
Return on planned assets - (437) (437)
Subtotal 77,332 (62,473) 14,859

Benefits paid (10,411) 10,411 -
Employer allocations - (587) (587)
2023.12.31 66,921 (52,649) 14,272
Service costs for the current period 47 - 47
Interest expenses (income) 803 (631) 172

Subtotal 67,771 (53,280) 14,491
Remeasurement of defined benefit 
liabilities/assets:  

Actuarial gains or losses from 
demographic assumptions - - -
Actuarial gains or losses from 
financial assumptions (1,532) - (1,532)
Experience based adjustments (321) - (321)
Return on planned assets - (5,143) (5,143)
Subtotal 65,918 (58,423) 7,495

Benefits paid (8,853) 8,853 -
Employer allocations - (527) (527)
2024.12.31 $57,065 $(50,097) $6,968
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The following key assumptions are used to determine the Group's defined benefit 

plan: 
 
 2024.12.31  2023.12.31
Discount rate 1.60%  1.20%
Expected rate of salary increase 1.00%  1.00%
 
Sensitivity analysis of every material actuarial assumption: 
 
  2024 2023 

  

Increase in 
defined 
benefit 

obligation 

Decrease in 
defined 
Benefit 

obligation 

Increase in 
defined 
benefit 

obligation  

Decrease in 
defined 
Benefit 

obligation 
Discount rate increase by 

0.25% 
 $- $923 $-  $1,139

Discount rate decrease by 
0.25% 

 949 - 1,173  -

Expected salary increase 
by 0.25% 

 809 - 1,005  -

Expected salary decrease 
by 0.25% 

 - 791 -  981

 

The purpose of conducting the aforementioned sensitivity analysis is to analyze the 

possible impact of determining a defined benefit obligation when a single actuarial 

assumption (e.g. discount rate or expected salary) undergoes a reasonably likely change, 

assuming all other assumptions remain unchanged. Since some of the actuarial 

assumptions are related to each other, there are few separate actuarial assumptions that 

undergo singular changes in reality, so the analysis has its limitations. 
 

The methods and assumptions used in the current period of sensitivity analysis are no 

different from the previous periods. 
 

15. Equity 
 
(1) Common stock 

 

As of December 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the authorized capital stock of 

the Company was NT$ 2,000,000 thousand respectively; the share capital already 

issued by the Company reached NT$ 866,740 thousand respectively with a face 

value per share of NT$ 10. There were 86,674 thousand shares respectively. Each 

share enjoys a voting right and the right to collect dividends.  
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The Company passed a resolution at the regular Shareholders' Meeting on June 

20, 2023 to handle a capital decrease in cash and refund of share capital. This 

resolution was submitted for approval and became effective according to Letter 

Tai-Cheng-Shang-I-Tzu No. 1121803752 issued by Taiwan Stock Exchange 

Corporation on August 8, 2023. The decreased capital amount was NT$ 216,685 

thousand, and a total of 21,668,502 shares were canceled. The ratio of capital 

decrease reached 20%, and the base date of the capital decrease was August 9, 

2023. Furthermore, the Company finished the handling of change registration on 

August 22, 2023. The base date of the capital decrease and issuance of new 

shares was October 6, 2023.   
 

(2) Capital surplus 
 2024.12.31  2023.12.31

Treasury share transactions $288 $288
Consolidated surplus 33,108 33,108
Others 809 809
Total $34,205 $34,205

 

The increase in capital surplus from treasury stock transactions was the result of 

the liquidation of the subsidiary, Hongshuo Corporation, which held disposal 

excess of the Group's shares. 

 

The increase in capital surplus from the merger was due to the merger of Rivon, 

which became a company dissolved by the merger, and the total assets less the 

amount of debts assumed by the dissolved company and the amount paid to the 

dissolved company's shareholders. 

 

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, dividends that are not collected before the 

designated date amounted to NT$809 thousand, respectively, and the Company 

adjusted capital surplus - other. 

 

According to the law, the capital reserve shall not be used except to make up for 

the Company deficit. When the Company has no deficit, the overage of the shares 

issued by the par value and the capital reserve generated by the proceeds of the 

donation can be used to charge up the capital up to a certain percentage of the 

paid-up capital each year. The aforesaid capital surplus may also be distributed in 

cash in proportion to the original share of the shareholders. 
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(3) Appropriation of net income and dividend policy 

 

Pursuant to the Company's Articles of Incorporation, if a surplus is available after 

closing the accounts, it shall be allocated in the following order: 

A. Pay taxes 

B. make up loses  

C. then 10% of which shall be appropriated as legal capital reserve. 

D. The remaining amount shall be added to the accumulated undistributed 

earnings. The accumulated distributable earnings are determined after the 

special reserve has been appropriated or reversed in accordance with the law. 

E. The aforementioned accumulated distributable earnings are determined 

based on the necessity of financing the capital requirements of the earnings, 

the amount of retained or distributed earnings and the method of distribution in 

accordance with the basic principles of the Company's dividend policy, and the 

proposal for distribution of earnings is submitted to the shareholders' meeting for 

resolution when new shares are issued.  

 

The distribution of dividends and bonuses or legal reserve and capital surplus, in 

whole or in part, shall be authorized by the Board of Directors with the presence of 

at least two-thirds of the directors and the approval of a majority of the directors 

present, and reported to the shareholders' meeting if the distribution is made in 

the form of cash. 

 

The Company's dividend policy is based on the principle of continuous growth, 

maximization of operating profit and shareholders' equity, and stable business 

development. The annual dividend is based on the principle of paying no less than 

50% of distributable earnings, with cash dividends accounting for at least 20% of 

the dividends paid. 

 

Pursuant to the Company Act, legal capital reserve shall be appropriated until the 

total sum of which has reached the paid in capital. Legal capital reserve shall be 

used toward making up for the deficit. When the Company does not have past 

deficits, the Company may issue new shares or distribute cash with the portion of 

legal capital reserve that exceeds 25% of the paid in capital. 

 

During the Company's Board of Directors' Meeting on February 25, 2025 and Annual 

Shareholders' Meeting on May 24, 2024, the appropriations and distribution of 

earnings for 2024 and 2023 have been separately proposed and approved with the 

following details: 
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Appropriations and 

Distribution of Earnings Dividends Per Share (NT$)

 2024 2023 2024  2023 
Legal reserve $17,524 $9,088   
Cash dividends of 
common stock (Note) $52,004 $56,338 $0.6 $0.65

 

Note: The Company's Board of Directors has specifically approved the payment 

of cash dividends on common stock for 2024 and 2023 on February 25, 

2025 and February 27, 2024. 

 

Please see Note 6(19) for information on the standards of estimate and recognition of 

amounts of employee compensation and remunerations of the Directors and 

Supervisors. 

 

16. Operating revenue 
 

Analysis of revenue from contracts with customers during the years ended December 31, 

2024 and 2023 are as follows: 
 
(1) Disaggregation of revenue 

 
2024 

  

Chocolate and 
Biscuit 

Department 
Pastry 

Department
Other 

Department  Total 

Sale of goods  $1,423,447 $393,430 $- $1,816,877
Other operating 
revenue  - - 115,327 115,327

Total  $1,423,447 $393,430 $115,327 $1,932,204

   
Timing of revenue 
recognition:   

At a fixed point in 
time $1,423,447 $393,430 $115,327 $1,932,204
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2023 

  

Chocolate and 
Biscuit 

Department 
Pastry 

Department
Other 

Department  Total 

Sale of goods  $1,242,505 $434,712 $68,188 $1,745,405
Other operating 
revenue  - - 4,629 4,629

Total  $1,242,505 $434,712 $72,817 $1,750,034

   
Timing of revenue 
recognition:   

At a fixed point in 
time $1,242,505 $434,712 $72,817 $1,750,034

 
(2) Contract balance 

 
Contract liabilities - current 

 2024.12.31 2023.12.31  2023.1.1 

Sale of goods $33,328 $37,014 $19,452

 
(3) Apportionment to the transaction price of outstanding performance obligations 

 

As of December 31, 2024, the Group has outstanding (including partially outstanding) 

performance obligations with apportioned transaction prices totaling NT$33,328 

thousand, of which approximately 97% is expected to be recognized as revenue in 

2025 and the remaining is recognized as revenue in 2026. 

 

As of December 31, 2023, the Group has outstanding (including partially outstanding) 

performance obligations with apportioned transaction prices totaling NT$37,014 

thousand, of which approximately 96% is expected to be recognized as revenue in 

2024 and the remaining is recognized as revenue in 2025. 

 

(4) Assets recognized from the cost of acquiring or performing customer contracts  

None. 

 

17. Expected credit loss (gain) 

For the Company’s accounts receivable, the allowance for losses is measured based 

on the expected credit loss amount over the duration. The relevant description of the 

evaluation of the allowance for losses as of December 31, 2024, and December 31, 

2023, is as follows:  
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The company differentiates groups based on counterparts’ credit ratings, regions, 

industries, and other relevant factors and implements a standard matrix to assess 

the allowance for losses. Relevant information is as follows: 

2024.12.31 
  

Not 

overdue

Days overdue  

  
Within 30 

days 
31-60 days 61-90 days  

More than 90 

days 
Total 

Total carrying amount  $400,022 $14,028 $3,756 $596 $740 $419,142
Rate of loss  0%~0.11% 0%~0.45% 0%~2.66% 0%~14.77% 0%~0.14%
Lifetime expected credit 
losses  (454) (64) (100) (88) (1) (707)

Total  $399,568 $13,964 $3,656 $508 $739 $418,435

 
2023.12.31 
  

Not 

overdue

Days overdue  

  
Within 30 

days 
31-60 days 61-90 days  

More than 90 

days 
Total 

Total carrying amount  $324,763 $9,541 $805 $93 $121 $335,323
Rate of loss  0%~0.29% 0%~0.35% 0%~0.75% 0%~21.51%  -
Lifetime expected credit 
losses  (938) (33) (6) (20) - (997)

Total  $323,825 $9,508 $799 $73 $121 $334,326

 

The Company's notes receivable and accounts receivable - related parties are not 

overdue. 

 

The movement in the provision of impairment of trade receivables during the years 

ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 are as follows: 

 

 

Accounts 

receivable 

2024.1.1 $997

Additional/(reversal) for the current period -

Write off (290)

2024.12.31 $707

2023.1.1 $997

Additional/(reversal) for the current period -

Write off -

2023.12.31 $997
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18. Operating lease 

 

(1) Company as a lessee 

 

The Company’s various properties, including real estate such as land and 

buildings and transportation equipment. The lease terms range from 1 to 5 years, 

some of which are non-renewable, and there are no restrictions placed upon the 

Company by entering into these leases. 

 

The Company’s leases effect on the financial position, financial performance and 

cash flows are as follows: 

 

A. Amounts recognized in the balance sheet 

 

(a) Right-of-use assets 

Carrying amount of right-of-use assets 

 

 2024.12.31  2023.12.31 

Housing and Construction $35,989 $36,765

Transportation equipment 780 313

Total $36,769 $37,078

 

For the years ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Company’s addition 

to right-of-use assets amounted to NT$18,180 thousand and NT$23,756 

thousand, respectively. 

 

(b) Lease liabilities 

 

 2024.12.31  2023.12.31 

Lease liabilities $37,177 $37,444

Current $17,029 $15,781

Non-current $20,148 $21,663

 

Please refer to Note 6(20)(4) Financing Costs for the Company's 

interest expense for lease liabilities, and Note 12(5) Liquidity Risk 

Management for the analysis on the expiration of lease liabilities in 

2023 and 2024 respectively. 
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B. Amounts recognized in the statement of comprehensive income 

 

Depreciation charge for right-of-use assets 

 2024  2023 

Housing and Construction $18,072 $17,083

Transportation equipment 417 328

Total $18,489 $17,411

 

C. Revenues and expenses related to the lessee and lease activities 

 

 2024  2023 

Expenses relating to short-term leases $3,474 $3,980

Expenses relating to leases of low-value assets 

(not including the expenses relating to 

short-term leases of low-value assets) 

20 23

 

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, the Company's committed short-term 

lease portfolio is similar in the category of the aforementioned lease related to 

short-term lease expenses. 

 

D. Cash outflow related to the lessee and lease activities 

 

The total cash outflow related to lease of the Company in 2024 and 2023 was 

NT$19,002 thousand and NT$18,258 thousand respectively. 

 

E. Other information relating to leasing activities 

 

(a) Extension and termination options 

 

Some of the Company’s property rental agreement contain extension and 

termination options. In determining the lease terms, the non- cancellable 

period for which the Company has the right to use an underlying asset, 

together with both periods covered by an option to extend the lease if the 

Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option and periods covered 

by an option to terminate the lease if the Company is reasonably certain 

not to exercise that option. These options are used to maximize operational 

flexibility in terms of managing contracts. The majority of extension and 
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termination options held are exercisable only by the Company. After the 

commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease term upon the 

occurrence of a significant event or a significant change in circumstances that is 

within the control of the lessee and affects whether the Company is reasonably 

certain to exercise an option not previously included in its determination of the 

lease term, or not to exercise an option previously included in its determination 

of the lease term. 

 

(2) Company as a lessor 

 

Please refer to Note 6(8) for disclosures related to the Company's owned investment 

properties. Owned investment property is classified as an operating lease due to the 

non-transfer of substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the 

subject asset. 

 

 2024  2023 

Lease revenue recognized from operating lease  
Income relating to variable lease payments that do not 

depend on an index or a rate $20,156 $18,029

 

Please refer to Note 6(8) for relevant disclosure of property, plant and equipment 

for operating leases under IFRS 16. 

 

For operating leases entered by the Company, the undiscounted lease payments to 

be received and a total of the amounts for the remaining years as of December 31, 

2024 and 2023 are as follows: 

 

 2024.12.31  2023.12.31

Not later than one year $19,442 $17,092

Later than one year but not later than two years 15,743 14,218

Later than two years but not later than three years 10,978 12,803

Later than three years but not later than four 

years 

7,126 

8,552

Later than four years but not later than five years 3,371 4,728

Total $56,660 $57,393
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19. Employee benefits, depreciation and amortization expenses are summarized by 

function as follows: 
 

By function 

 

By Nature 

2024 2023 

Operation 
Costs 

Operation 
Expenses

Non- 
operation 
Expenses

Total Operation 
Costs 

Operation 
Expenses 

Non- 
operation 
Expenses 

Total 

Employee benefits
expense 

  

Salaries $246,020 $138,518 $- $384,538$215,703 $141,483 $- $357,186
Labor and health

insurance 27,755 15,630 - 43,385 24,731 14,750 - 39,481

Pension 10,250 7,413 - 17,663 8,748 6,875 - 15,623
Remuneration Paid

to Directors - - - - - 553 - 553

Other Employee
benefits expense 17,218 11,580 - 28,798 13,560 9,429 - 22,989

Depreciation 
expenses 101,108 51,802 1,728 154,638 82,402 48,936 1,745 133,083

Amortization 
expenses 14,267 9,227 - 23,494 24,410 15,214 - 39,624

 

Note 1. The Company had 761 and 714 employees in 2023 and 2024 respectively, 

which there were five and four Directors who do not concurrently hold 

positions as employees of the Company, respectively. 

Note 2. Average employee benefit expenses for 2024 and 2023 were NT$653 

thousand and NT$622 thousand respectively. Average employee salary 

expenses for 2024 and 2023 were NT$529 thousand and NT$510 thousand 

respectively. Average employee salary adjustment increased 3.71%. 

Note 3. The Company has set up an audit committee to replace the supervisor in 

accordance with the regulations; the supervisor's remuneration for 2024 and 

2023 was NT$0 thousand. 

Note 4. The Company's remuneration policy: The remuneration policy for directors, 

supervisors and managers of the Company is in accordance with the 

"Regulations Governing the Appointment and Exercise of Powers by the 

Remuneration Committee of a Company Whose Stock is Listed on the Taiwan 

Stock Exchange or the Taipei Exchange" and is submitted to the 

Remuneration Committee for consideration. The directors of the Company 

shall be compensated for their duties regardless of the Company's operating 

profit or loss, and their remuneration shall be determined by the Board of 

Directors' meeting with reference to the level of the industry; The 

compensation of the manager is highly correlated with the performance of 

the company's operation and the contribution of his duties, and is authorized 
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to be determined by the board of directors' meeting; In addition to the basic 

salary, the Company pays bonuses according to the annual operation status to 

encourage morale and retain outstanding employees in a timely manner, and 

prepares salary adjustment items and amounts according to the grade and 

performance of employees with reference to the industry standard. 

 

The Company's Articles of Incorporation state that if there is a profit for the year, 

1-3% of that profit shall be allocated for employee compensation, and no more than 

2% shall be allocated for the remuneration of Directors and Supervisors. However, 

when there is an accumulated loss, the Company shall first retain the profit to offset 

the deficits. The employee compensation appropriated in shares or dividends must be 

approved by a Board of Directors meeting attended by two-thirds or more of all 

Directors, with a majority vote from those attending, and reported to the Shareholders' 

Meeting. For information on employee compensation and the remuneration of Directors 

and Supervisors, as approved by the Board of Directors, please refer to the Market 

Observation Post System (MOPS) from the Taiwan Stock Exchange (TWSE). 

 
Since the Company incurred a net before-tax loss in 2024, it did not distribute employee 

compensation or remuneration to the Directors and Supervisors. 

 
In 2023, the Company recognized employee compensation and directors' remuneration of 

NT$1,105 thousand and NT$553 thousand, at rates of 3% and 1.5%, respectively, which 

were distributed based on the current year's profitability and included in salary expenses. 

 

The amount of employee compensation and remuneration allocated to the Directors and 

Supervisors by the Company in 2023 was not significantly different from the amount 

recorded as expenses in the 2023 financial report. 

 

20. Non-operating income and expenses 

 

(1) Interest income 

 2024  2023 

Financial assets measured at amortized cost $540 $1,160
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(2) Other income 

 2024  2023 

Rental income $20,156 $18,029

Dividend income 1,221 -

Other income－other 12,097 5,800

Total $33,474 $23,829

 

(3) Other gains and losses 

 2024  2023 

Gains (losses) on disposal of property plant, and 

equipment 

$514 
$(1,367)

Gains on disposals of investments - 2,710

Loss on scrapping of property, plant, and 

equipment 

(86) 
(397)

Net foreign exchange gains 4,188 1,898

Other expenses (1,729) (1,758)

Total $2,887 $1,086

 

(4) Finance costs 

 2024  2023 

Interest on bank loans $14,410 $9,030

Interest on lease liabilities 555 797

Imputed interest on deposits 57 51

Total finance costs $15,022 $9,878

 

21. Components of other comprehensive income 

 

The components of other comprehensive income for 2024 are as follows: 

 

 

Arising in 
the current 

period

Reclassificati
on and 

adjustment 
in the 

current 
period

Other 
comprehens
ive income  

Income tax 
benefit 

(expense)  
After-tax 
amount

Items that will not be reclassified to profit 
or loss:   

Remeasurement of defined benefit plans $6,996 $- $6,996 $(1,399) $5,597
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Unrealized gains (losses) on investments 
in equity instruments at fair value 
through other comprehensive income 228,100 - 228,100 (12,289) 215,871

Share of other comprehensive income or 
loss of subsidiaries - associates and 
joint ventures recognized under the 
equity method - items not reclassified 
to profit or loss 2,208 - 2,208 - 2,208

Items that may be reclassified to profit or 
loss in subsequent periods:   

Exchange differences on translation of 
financial statements of foreign 
operations - - - - -

Total $237,304 $- $237,304 $(13,688) $223,616

 

The components of other comprehensive income for 2023 are as follows: 

 

 

Arising in 
the current 

period

Reclassificati
on and 

adjustment 
in the 

current 
period

Other 
comprehens
ive income  

Income tax 
benefit 

(expense)  
After-tax 
amount

Items that will not be reclassified to profit 
or loss:  

Remeasurement of defined benefit 
plans $(4,392) $- $(4,392) $878 $(3,514)

Unrealized gains (losses) on investments 
in equity instruments at fair value 
through other comprehensive income (204,422) - (204,422) (4,950) (209,372)

Share of other comprehensive income 
or loss of subsidiaries - associates 
and joint ventures recognized under 
the equity method - items not 
reclassified to profit or loss (51) - (51) - (51)

Items that may be reclassified to profit or 
loss in subsequent periods:  

Exchange differences on translation of 
financial statements of foreign 
operations 928 - 928 - 928

Total $(207,937) $- $(207,937) $(4,072) $(212,009)

 
22. Income Tax 

 
Major components of income tax expense (benefit) for 2024 and 2023 are as follows: 
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Income tax recognized in profit or loss 
 2024  2023 
Current income tax expense (benefit):  

Current income tax payable $- $18,847
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of 

prior periods (1,456) 15
Deferred income tax expense (benefit):  

Deferred tax expense (benefit) relating to origination
and reversal of temporary differences 439 633

Income tax (benefit) expense $(1,017) $19,495

 
Income tax recognized in other comprehensive income 
 
 2024  2023 
Current income tax expense (benefit):    
Realized gains (losses) on investments in equity 

instruments at fair value through other 
comprehensive income $12,289  $4,950

Deferred income tax expense (benefit):  
Remeasurement of defined benefit plans 1,399 (878)
Income tax related to other components of other 

comprehensive income $13,688 $4,072

 
Reconciliation between tax expense and the product of accounting profit multiplied 
by applicable tax rates is follows: 
 
 2024 2023
Accounting profit before tax from continuing 
operations $(25,094) $35,185

Income tax calculated at the parent company’s 
statutory income tax rate $(5,109) $7,037
Settlement of the Surtax on Undistributed Retained 
Earnings - 18,847

Tax effects of non-deductible expense 4,140 (6,550)

Tax effects of revenues exempt from taxation (1,624) -
Tax effects of other - use of loss carryforwards 
adjusted in accordance with the law 

2,942 
146

Adjustments of current income tax in previous years (1,456) 15

Income tax expense recognized in profit or loss $(1,017) $19,495
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Deferred income tax asset (liabilities) balances related to the following items: 
2024 
 

Beginning 
balance

Recognized 
in profit or 

loss

Recognized 
in other 

comprehens
ive income  other 

 

Ending 
balance

Temporary differences   

Book-tax difference in 
depreciation $1,359 $(412) $-  $- $947
Net defined benefit liabilities - 
non-current 16,962 (62) (1,399)  - 15,501
Short-term employee benefits 1,544 - -  - 1,544
Unrealized exchange losses (50) 35 -  - (15)
Impairment of property, plant, 
and equipment 12 - -  - 12

Deferred income tax 
(expense)/benefit $(439) $(1,399)  $- 

Net deferred income tax 
assets/(liabilities) $19,827    $17,989

Information stated on balance 
sheet is as follows:    
Deferred income tax assets $19,877    $18,004

Deferred income tax liabilities $50   $15

 
2023 
 

Beginning 
balance

Recognized 
in profit or 

loss

Recognized 
in other 

comprehens
ive income  other 

 

Ending 
balance

Temporary differences   

Book-tax difference in 
depreciation $1,804 $(445) $-  $- $1,359

Accumulated conversion 
adjustment (5,485) - -  5,485 -
Net defined benefit liabilities - 
non-current 16,141 (57) 878  - 16,962
Short-term employee benefits 1,544 - -  - 1,544
Unrealized exchange losses 81 (131) -  - (50)
Impairment of property, plant, 
and equipment 12 - -  - 12

Deferred income tax 
(expense)/benefit $(633) $878  $5,485 

Net deferred income tax 
assets/(liabilities) $14,097    $19,827

Information stated on balance 
sheet is as follows:    
Deferred income tax assets $19,582    $19,877

Deferred income tax liabilities $5,485   $50
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The following table contains information of the unused tax losses of the Company: 
 
   Unused tax losses   
Year of occurrence  Loss amount 2024.12.31 2023.12.31  Expiration year

2017  $88,248 $44,458 $44,458  2027 
2018  9,077 9,077 9,077  2028 
2023  5,770 5,770 5,770  2033 
2024  14,708 14,708 -  2034 
Total  $117,803 $74,013 $59,305   

 

Unrecognized deferred income tax assets 

 

As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, deferred tax assets that have not been recognized 

as they may not be used to offset taxable profits amounted to NT$14,803 thousand and 

NT$11,861 thousand, respectively. 

 

The assessment of income tax returns 

 

As of December 31, 2024, the assessment of the income tax returns of the Company is 

as follows: 

 

  
The assessment of income 

tax returns 
Remark 

The Company  
Assessed and approved up to 

2022 
None 

 

23. Earnings per share 

 

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing net profit for the year attributable to 

ordinary equity owners of the parent entity by the weighted average number of 

ordinary shares outstanding during the year. 

 2024  2023 

Basic earnings per share  
Profit attributable to ordinary equity owners of the 
parent (in NT$ thousand) $(24,077) $15,690

Weighted average number of ordinary shares 
outstanding for basic earnings per share (in 
thousands) 86,674 99,734

Basic earnings per share (NT$) $(0.28)  $0.16

64



Hunya Foods Co. Ltd. Notes to Parent Company Only Financial Statements (Continued) 

(Amounts in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, unless otherwise specified) 

 

There have been no other transactions involving ordinary shares or potential 

ordinary shares between the reporting date and the date the financial statements were 

authorized for issue. 

 
VII. Related Party Transactions 

 

Names and relationship of related parties 

 

Related Party Relationship with the Company 

Rivon Investment Co. The Director of the company and the Chairman and 
President of the Company are the same person 

Cheng Tien Investment Co. The Chairperson of the company and the chairman of 
the Company are the same person 

Croissant Bakery Ltd. The company is a subsidiary of the Company 

 
Material transaction matters with related parties 
 
1. Accounts receivable 

 2024  2023 

Entities over which the Company has control:  
Croissant Bakery Ltd. $5,005 $3,763

 
2. Other receivables 

 2024  2023 

Entities over which the Company has control:  
Croissant Bakery Ltd. $- $15

 
3. Sales revenue 

 2024  2023 

Entities over which the Company has control:  
Croissant Bakery Ltd. $17,275 $11,399

 

The sales prices of the Company's sales to related parties are negotiated by the 

parties with reference to market prices. The outstanding amounts for 2024 and 2023 

are unsecured, interest-free and payable in cash. The Company has not received any 

guarantee for the receivables from related parties 
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4. Purchases 
 2024  2023 

Entities over which the Company has control:    

Croissant Bakery Ltd. $1,391  $-

 
5. Rental income 

 

The Company's properties were leased to related parties under general lease terms 

for 2024 and 2023, with the following breakdown: 
 2024  2023 

Other related party:   
Rivon Investment Co. $24  $24
Cheng Tien Investment Co. 24  24
Croissant Bakery Ltd. 24  20

 $72  $68

 
6. Property transactions 

 
The Company’s sale of properties to related parties are as follows: 
 

Related Party  Summary 2024  2023 
Croissant Bakery 

Ltd. 
 Purchasing of 

machinery 
equipment

Purchasing 
price 

$86 $-

 Purchasing of 
other equipment

Purchasing 
price 

$669 $-

 
7. Operating expenses 

 
Related Party  Summary 2024  2023 

Croissant Bakery 
Ltd. 

 Manufacturing expenses-Sundry 
purchases 

$339 $-

Croissant Bakery 
Ltd. 

 Research expenses-Sundry 
purchases 

4 $-

Subtotal   $343 $-
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8. Bonuses for the Company's key managerial officers 
 

 2024  2023 
Salaries, bonuses, executive fees and remuneration $20,786 $20,833

 
The key management personnel of the Company comprise directors, president and 

vice president. 
 

VIII. Pledged Assets 
 
The Company has pledged the following assets as collateral: 
 

 Carrying amount  

Item 2024.12.31 2023.12.31
Content of the secured 

liabilities 
Property, plant and equipment - land 
and building 

$1,118,976 $1,147,579 Bank loans 

Investment property - land and 
buildings 

184,913 186,641 〃 

Other current assets - restricted assets - 
time deposits 

700 700 Truck fuel guarantee 

Total $1,304,589 $1,334,920  

 
IX. Significant Contingent Liabilities and Unrecognized Contract Commitments 

 
As of December 31, 2024, the Company had unused forward letter of credit facilities for 

the purchase of raw materials and equipment amounting to approximately NT$16,771 

thousand. 
 

X. Significant Disaster Loss 
 

None. 
 

XI. Significant Events after the Balance Sheet Date 
 

None. 
 

XII. Miscellaneous 
 
1. Category of financial instruments 
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Financial assets 
 2024.12.31  2023.12.31

Financial assets at fair value through other 
comprehensive income $687,670 $708,418

Financial assets at amortized cost  

Cash and cash equivalents (excluding petty cash) 46,772 41,206

Notes receivable 2,593 4,932

Accounts receivable 418,435 334,326

Refundable deposits 4,939 4,476

Restricted assets 700 700

Total $1,161,109 $1,094,058

 
Financial liabilities 
 

 2024.12.31  2023.12.31
Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost:   

Short-term loans $100,000 $50,000
Short-term notes and bills payable 496,397 456,115
Accounts payable 774,000 707,222
Long-term loans (Due within one year) 4,388 4,361
Guarantee deposits received 37,177 37,444

Total $1,411,962 $1,255,142

 
2. Objective and policy of financial risk management 

 

The objective of the Company's financial risk management is to manage the market 

risk, credit risk, and liquidity risk related to operating activities. The Company 

conducts the identification, valuation, and management of the aforementioned 

risks based on the Company's policy and risk appetite. 

 

The Company has set up appropriate policy, procedures, and internal control in 

regards to the aforementioned financial risk management based on relevant 

standards. Material financing activities need to be reviewed by the Board of 

Directors in regards to relevant standards and internal control system. During 

implementations of financial management activities, the Company shall strictly 

abide by the regulations for financial risk management that have been set up. 
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3. Market risk 
 

The Company's market risk is the risk of changes in fair value or cash flow from 

financial instruments due to market price changes. Market risk mostly includes 

exchange rate risk, interest rate risk, and other pricing risks (e.g. equity 

instruments). 

 

In practice, very few risk variables are single occurring, and the change in each risk 

variable is usually correlated. Nevertheless, the sensitivity analysis on the following 

risks does not take the interactions between various risk variables into 

consideration. 
 
Exchange rate risk 
 

The Company's foreign exchange rate risk relates primarily to foreign currency 

bank deposits. 

 

The foreign currency sensitivity analysis of the possible change in foreign exchange 

rates on the Company’s profit is performed on significant monetary items 

denominated in foreign currencies as of the end of the reporting period. The 

Company’s foreign currency risk is mainly related to the volatility in the exchange 

rates for USD and EUR. The information of the sensitivity analysis is as follows: 

 

When NTD appreciates or depreciates against USD by 1%, the profit for the years 

ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 decreases/increases by NT$147 thousand and 

NT$90 thousand, respectively. 
 

When NTD appreciates or depreciates against EUR by 1%, the profit for the years 

ended December 31, 2024 and 2023 decreases/increases by NT$0 thousand and 

NT$1 thousand, respectively. 
 
Interest rate risk 
 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial 

instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The 

Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates 

primarily to the bank borrowings with fixed interest rates and variable interest 

rates. 
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Sensitivity analysis for interest rate risk mostly targets interest rate exposure items 

after the reporting period and includes variable rate investments and variable rate 

borrowings. It adopts the assumption that in a given accounting period, when the 

interest increases or decreases by 0.1%, the Company's 2024 and 2023 income will 

increase by NT$874 thousand and decrease by NT$757 thousand respectively. 
 
Equity price risk 
 

The Company's listed and unlisted equity securities are susceptible to market price 

risk arising from uncertainties about future values of the investment securities. The 

Company's listed and unlisted equity securities are included in the category 

measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. Portfolio information 

on equity securities is provided to the Company's senior management on a regular 

basis and the Board of Directors is required to review and approve all investment 

decisions on equity securities. 

 

The Company does not hold listed equity securities that are mandatorily measured 

at fair value through profit or loss. 

 

For investments in equity instruments measured at fair value through other 

comprehensive income, if the price of these equity securities increases/decreases 

by 1%, the equity in the Company's equity would increase/decrease by NT$6,877 

thousand and NT$7,084 thousand in 2024 and 2023, respectively. 

 
4. Credit risk management 

 

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty is unable to fulfill contractual 

obligations and leads to financial loss. The Company's credit risk mostly comes 

from operating activities (mostly from accounts receivable and notes receivable) 

and financing activities (mostly bank deposits and various financial instruments). 

 

Each business unit of the Company follows credit risk policy, procedure, and 

controls in managing credit risks. The credit risk valuation of all trading 

counterparties comprehensively measures factors including the counterparties' 

financial status, credit rating, past transaction experiences, current economic 

environment, and the Company's internal valuations. The Company also adopts 

certain credit enhancement tools (e.g. prepayment) on a timely basis to reduce the 

credit risk from certain customers. 
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As of December 31, 2024 and 2023, receivables from top ten customers 

represented 84% and 76% of the total contract assets and trade receivables of the 

Company, respectively. The credit concentration risk of other contract assets and 

accounts receivables was insignificant. 

 

The Company's financing department manages credit risk by managing bank 

deposits and other financial instruments in accordance with Company policy. The 

Company only transacts with counterparties approved by the internal control 

procedures, which are banks and financial institutions, companies and government 

entities with good credit rating. Consequently, there is no significant credit risk for 

these counterparties. 

 

The Company has adopted IFRS 9 in the valuation of expected credit loss. 

Receivables are measured as allowances for lifetime expected credit losses. 

 

Additionally, when evaluating financial assets that cannot be reasonably recovered, 

the Company will write off the assets (for instance, if the issuer or the debtor 

experiences material financial difficulty or has become bankrupt). 
 

The Company's investments in debt instruments with increased credit risk are 

disposed of in a timely manner to reduce credit losses. When evaluating expected 

credit losses, forward-looking information (information that can be obtained 

without excessive costs or inputs) is also evaluated, including macroeconomic 

information and industry information, and the loss rate is further adjusted if the 

forward-looking information will have a significant impact. 

 
5. Liquidity risk management 

 

The Company maintains financial flexibility through contracts including cash and 

cash equivalents and bank loans, etc. The following table summarizes the maturity 

of the payments contained in the contracts of the Company's financial liabilities. It 

is compiled based on the date on which the earliest possible repayment is required 

using its undiscounted cash flow. 
 
Non-derivative financial liabilities 

  
Less than 1 

year 1 to 4 years
5 years or 

above  Total 

2024.12.31   
Loans  $200,000 $674,000 $- $874,000
Accounts payable  496,397 - - 496,397

71



Hunya Foods Co. Ltd. Notes to Parent Company Only Financial Statements (Continued) 

(Amounts in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, unless otherwise specified) 

 

Lease liabilities (Note)  20,523 20,148 - 40,671
   
2023.12.31   
Loans  $72,222 $685,000 $- $757,222
Accounts payable  456,115 - - 456,115
Lease liabilities (Note)  19,784 21,663 - 41,447
 
Note: Including short-term leases as well as cash flows of lease contracts of low-value 
underlying assets.  
 
6. Adjustments of liabilities from financing activities 
 
Information on adjustments of liabilities in 2024: 
 

  
Short-term 

loans  

Long-term loans 
(Due within one 

year) Lease liabilities

Other non- 
Current 
liabilities  

Total liabilities 
from financing 

activities 

2024.1.1  $50,000  $707,222 $37,444 $5,433 $800,099
Cash flows 
from:  

50,000 66,778 (19,002) 27 97,803

Non-cash 
changes  

- - 18,735 (290) 18,445

2024.12.31  $100,000 $774,000 $37,177 $5,170 $916,347

 
Information on adjustments of liabilities in 2023: 
 

  
Short-term 

loans  

Long-term loans 
(Due within one 

year) Lease liabilities
Other non- 

Current liabilities 

Total liabilities 
from financing 

activities 

2023.1.1  $44,867  $488,889 $31,149 $4,091 $568,996 
Cash flows 
from:  5,133 218,333 (18,258) 1,602 206,810 
Non-cash 
changes  - - 24,553 (260) 24,293 

2023.12.31  $50,000 $707,222 $37,444 $5,433 $800,099 

 
7. Fair value of financial instruments 

 
(1) Valuation technique and assumptions used in measuring fair value 

 
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer 
a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the 
measurement date. The following methods and assumptions were used by the 
Company to measure or disclose the fair values of financial assets and financial 
liabilities: 
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A. The carrying amount of the cash and cash equivalents, account receivables, 

account payables and other current liabilities is a reasonable approximation 

of the fair value, mainly because the period of maturity of such instruments 

is short. 

 

B. The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are traded in 

active market and have standard terms and conditions are determined by 

reference to market quotations (e.g., listed stocks, beneficiary certificates, 

bonds and futures). 

 

C. The fair value of long-term borrowings is determined based on quoted 

prices from counter-parties, and assumptions such as interest rates and 

discount rates are made mainly with reference to information related to 

similar instruments (e.g., information on credit risk). 
 

(2) Fair value of financial instruments measured at amortized cost 
 
The carrying amounts of financial instruments (including cash and cash 

equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable and other current liabilities) 

carried at amortized cost are a reasonable approximation of fair value. 
 

(3) Information about the fair value hierarchy of financial instruments 
 
For details of the fair value hierarchy of the Company's financial instruments, 

please refer to Note 12(8). 
 

8. Fair value hierarchy 
 
(1) Definition of fair value hierarchy 

 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the 

financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, based on 

the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a 

whole. Level 1, 2 and 3 inputs are described as follows: 

 

Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical 

assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement 

date. 
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Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are 

observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. 

 

Level 3: Unobservable inputs for the asset or liabilities. 

 

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a 

recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred 

between Levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization at the end of 

each reporting period. 

 

(2) Hierarchical information on fair value measurements 
 

The Company has no non-recurring assets that are measured at fair value. The 

fair value hierarchy information of the recurring assets and liabilities is as 

follows: 
 
December 31, 2024: 
 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3  Total 
Assets measured at fair value:  
Measured at fair value 

through other 
comprehensive income  
Equity instruments 

measured at fair value 
through other 
comprehensive income $62,064 $625,606 $- $687,670

 
December 31, 2023: 
 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3  Total 
Assets measured at fair value:  
Measured at fair value 

through other 
comprehensive income  
Equity instruments 

measured at fair value 
through other 
comprehensive income $356,451 $351,967 $- $708,418

 
Transfer between Level 1 and Level 2 during the period 
 

During the year ended December 31, 2024 and 2023, there are no transfers 

between Level 1 and Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy for the Company’s 

assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on recurring basis. 
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Details of changes in Level 3 of the recurring fair value hierarchy 
 

Reconciliation of the opening to closing balances of the Company's assets and 

liabilities measured at fair value on recurring basis within level 3 of the fair 

value hierarchy is as follows: 
 
2024.12.31 None 
 

 
 

Equity instruments 
measured at fair value 

through other 
comprehensive 

income
 Stock 

2023.1.1 $14,860
Amount influenced by exchange rate 208
Transfer-out from Level 3	 (15,068)
2023.12.31 $-

 

Information on significant unobservable inputs in Level 3 of the fair value 

hierarchy 

 

The significant unobservable inputs to the Company's fair value hierarchy for 

assets measured at repeated fair values in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy 

that are used for fair value measurement are presented in the following table: 

 

December 31, 2024: 

 

The stocks of companies not listed on TPEx, as originally purchased by the 

Company, were listed on the Emerging Stock Market on August 8, 2023. Since 

quotations for the same assets or liabilities on an active market can be 

obtained on the measurement date, the level 3 market is not involved. 

 

December 31, 2023: 

The stocks of companies not listed in TPEx as originally purchased by the 

Group were listed on the Emerging Stock Market on August 8, 2023. 

Quotations of the same assets or liabilities on an active market could be 

acquired on the date of measurement, therefore Level 3 was transferred to 

Level 1. 
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(3) Information on hierarchy that is not measured at fair value but requires 
disclosure of fair value 
 
December 31, 2024: 
 

 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3  Total 
Assets with disclosed fair value 
only:   
Investment property (Note 6) $- $- $874,517 

~1,177,540  
$874,517~ 
1,177,540

December 31, 2023: 
 

 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3  Total 
Assets with disclosed fair value 
only:   
Investment property (Note 6) $- $- $741,484 

~1,249,811  
$741,484 

~1,249,811

 
9. Significant assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies 

 

Information on the Company's foreign currency financial assets and liabilities with 

significant impact is as follows: 

Amount unit: thousand 

 2024.12.31 

 
Foreign 

currency
Exchange 

rate  NT$

Financial assets  

Monetary items:  
USD $449 32.785 $14,721

EUR $0.5 34.14 $17

 

 2023.12.31 

 
Foreign 

currency
Exchange 

rate  NT$

Financial assets  

Monetary items:  
USD $294 30.71 $9,029

EUR $2 33.98 $68

 

The above information is based on the carrying amount in foreign currency (has 

been converted to functional currency). 
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10. Capital management

The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it 

maintains a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its 

business and maximize shareholder value. The Company manages its capital 

structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions. 

To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust dividend 

payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. 

XIII. Supplementary Disclosures

1. Information of Significant Transactions

(1) Financings provided to others: None. 

(2) Endorsement/guarantee provided to others: Please refer to Attachment 1. 

(3) Marketable securities held at the end of the period (excluding investments in 

subsidiaries, associates, and interests in joint ventures): Please refer to 

Attachment 2. 

(4) Individual securities acquired or disposed of with accumulated amount 

exceeding NT$300 million or 20% of the paid-in capital: Please refer to 

Attachment 3. 

(5) Acquisition of property with the amount exceeding NT$300 million or 20% of 

the paid-in capital: None 

(6) Disposal of property with the amount exceeding NT$300 million or 20% of the 

paid-in capital: None 

(7) Purchases or sales of goods from or to related parties with the amount 

exceeding NT$100 million or 20% of paid-in capital: None. 

(8) Receivables from related parties amounting to NT$100 million or 20% of paid- 

up capital: None. 

(9) Derivatives transactions: None. 

2. Information of the reinvestment business: Please refer to Attachment 4.

3. Information of investment in Mainland China: None

4. Information of major shareholders: Please refer to Attachment 5.
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Hunya Foods Co., Ltd. 

7. Statement of Changes in Property, Plant and Equipment

January 1 to December 31, 2024 

Item Beginning 
balance 

Additions 
(Including 

Reclassification)

Disposal 
(Including 

Reclassification)

Ending 
balance 

Collateral 
or 

guarantee
Remark

Costs: 

Land $828,500 $- $- $828,500 
See Note 8

Housing and construction 1,368,497 103,693 - 1,472,190 

Machinery 1,568,745 218,263 70,900 1,716,108 

Computer and 
telecommunication equipment 24,110 1,766 - 25,876 

Transportation equipment 42,905 8,696 4,289 47,312 

Leasehold improvements 39,309 - - 39,309 

Other equipment 191,245 110,739 15,751 286,233 

Construction in process 114,670 101,452 114,378 101,744 

Subtotal 4,177,981 544,609 205,318 4,517,272 

Depreciations: 

Housing and construction 951,323 30,861 - 982,184 

Machinery 1,345,054 52,149 70,872 1,326,331 

Computer and 
telecommunication equipment 

14,781 4,079 - 18,860 

Transportation equipment 34,727 2,322 4,231 32,818 

Leasehold improvements 25,403 6,454 - 31,857 

Other equipment 102,089 38,556 15,751 124,894 

Subtotal 2,473,377 134,421 90,854 2,516,944 

Net amount $1,704,604 
 
$2,000,328 
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Hunya Foods Co., Ltd. 

12. Statement of Notes Payable

December 31, 2024 

Client Name Description Amount Remark 

From non-operations: 

YU ○ CHUAN $38 

Other 28 (The individual 
amounts 
didn’t reach 5% of the 
total amount of 
accounts 
receivable.) 

Total $66 

95



Hunya Foods Co., Ltd. 

13. Statement of Accounts Payable

December 31, 2024 

Currency: NTD

Client Name Description Amount Remark 

Non-related parties 

Excellent Gravure $19,856 

Forward Graphic 13,169

Others 

161,623 (The individual amounts 
didn’t reach 5% of the  
total amount of accounts 
receivable.) 

Total $194,648 
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Hunya Foods Co., Ltd.  

 

18. Statement of Operating Revenue 

January 1 to December 31, 2024 

Item Quantity Amount  Remark 

I. Chocolate series  1,712,849   

II. Rivon dowry cake series 393,860   

III. Others  143,889  
(The individual amounts 

didn’t reach 5% of the 
total amount of 

operating revenue.)     

Total Sales Revenue  2,250,598   

Less: Sales Return  (26,014)   

Sales discounts and allowances  (292,380)   

 Total  $1,932,204 
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